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February 11, 2019

Town of Oakville
1225 Trafalgar Road
Oakville, ON 
L6H 0H3

Attention: Mayor Burton and Members of Planning and Development Council

Dear Mayor Burton and Members of Council:

Re: Proposed Town Initiated Official Plan Amendments - Revised Pre-consultation 
Requirements

We are solicitors for the Building Industry and Land Development Association (“BILD”) 
regarding their interest in the Town’s proposed Official Plan Amendments to revise the current
pre-consultation requirements and to introduce a two stage pre-consultation process. 

BILD has been advised that staff will be bringing forward a report to Council on Monday, 
February 11, 2019 regarding this matter (the “Staff Report”). The Staff Report is recommending 
that the Planning department proceed with amendments to the Livable Oakville Plan, the North 
Oakville East Secondary Plan and the North Oakville West Secondary Plan, in order to establish 
a two stage pre-consultation process. 

The Staff Report suggests that the need for a two stage pre-consultation process is a result of  
the fact that the prescribed process timelines in the Planning Act “…commence upon 
submission of a development application regardless of whether the content and quality of the 
studies are consistent with the applicable terms of reference.” With respect, if that is actually the 
concern, there is an easy fix to that problem that does not necessitate the creation of a two 
stage pre-consultation process.

Background

As you are aware, the current pre-consultation process was introduced into the Planning Act in
2006 to allow a municipality to require a wide range of information or material (the “Studies”)
that Council considers it may need before it will declare an application complete, should the
Official Plan contained provisions relating to such requirements. 
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Generally, but not exclusively, this requirement applies to applications to amend an Official 
Plan, Zoning By-law, as well as applications for draft plan of subdivision and consents.

Additionally and as you are also aware, Oakville’s Official Plan does contain provisions relating 
to when a pre-consultation is required, and includes a long list of Studies that can be required 
by Council prior to an application being deemed complete. The intent of this provision was to 
ensure that municipalities had the necessary Studies that they needed from the outset, to make 
a decision on an application within the time period set out in the Planning Act.

Further, the Planning Act allows a municipality to refuse to accept an application if the 
necessary Studies are not provided, and most importantly, if the necessary Studies have not 
been provided, the statutory time frame that Council has to make a decision on an application 
would not start until such time as they are provided. 

The only limitation to these entitlements given to the municipality by the Planning Act, is that the 
municipality has to make a decision within 30 days as to whether or not the necessary Studies 
have been provided. If so, an application is deemed complete and the time period starts running 
and if not, the application can be deemed incomplete and the municipality can refuse to process 
it. 

Further, if an application is deemed incomplete or the municipality doesn’t make the decision 
within the 30 day time period, and there is a dispute that arises from such a decision, the 
applicant can bring a motion to the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal to determine whether the 
Studies were provided or whether the requirement for the Studies was reasonable. This is the 
“check” under the Planning Act that ensures that a municipalities requirements are not 
unreasonable or an application is being arbitrarily being deemed incomplete. 

It is submitted that what is being proposed in the Staff Report is an intentional and inappropriate
attempt to circumvent this statutory “check” in the system by taking away an applicant’s ability to 
have a decision made on the completeness of the application within 30 days, or from 
unreasonable requirements for submitting an application for which they have a statutory right to 
file.

Specifically, the proposed two stage pre-consultation process as set out in the Staff Report is 
designed to prevent an applicant from moving forward with their application until such time that 
Planning and agency staff are satisfied that the proponent has completed drafts of all technical 
supporting studies. Such a proposal would allow such staff to arbitrarily prevent an applicant 
from making an application under the Planning Act by simply declaring that they are not 
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“satisfied”. The Staff Report contains no information as to what could possibly make them 
“satisfied”. Further, it is unclear whether staff’s “satisfaction” pertains to the  Studies compliance 
with the Terms of Reference, or satisfaction with the particular findings of such Studies.  

Additionally, there is no requirement as set out in the staff report as to what the time limit would 
be for staff or agency staff to be “satisfied” and what would happen if such a time period was not 
met. 

By way of example, under the proposal in the Staff Report, should an applicant file an 
application to amend the Town’s Zoning By-law and an EIR/FSS was required as part of the 
application, a draft of that report would be required to be submitted and the Conservation 
Authority would be permitted an unlimited amount of time to review such a report. Given the 
typical lengthy time period that it currently takes the Conservation Authority to review any 
element of an application, an applicant would be delayed in filing the very application that the 
Planning Act permits an applicant to file, directly contrary to the specific time limits that the 
Planning Act sets out for both the determination of a complete application and the amount of 
time given to a municipality to make a decision on an application.      

It is submitted that such an arbitrary and open ended pre-consultation process is the very thing 
that the Planning Act specifically sought to limit by allowing motions to be brought to the LPAT 
for determination if there was a dispute as to timing or reasonableness as between the applicant 
and the municipality and the proposed two stage pre-consultation process is seeking to 
circumvent the protections established through the Planning Act pre-consultation process.

Furthermore, the Staff Report is entirely silent on what the requirements of stage 2 of the pre-
consultation would be for other than to say that a proponent can advance from stage 1 to stage 
2 when staff is satisfied. It therefore remains entirely unclear what the purpose of a two stage 
pre-consultation process is for, and is as a result premature for staff to be seeking direction from 
Council to come forward with amendments to the Official Plan and the North Oakville East and 
West Secondary Plans in the absence of any actual information on the second stage of the 
process.  

Proposed Solution

Given the claim in the Staff Report that the concern that is prompting the introduction of a two 
stage pre-consultation process is that Studies submitted with applications are not in accordance 
with the Terms of Reference, it is suggested that there is a much easier solution than 
introducing a two stage system that is contrary the Planning Act. Simply put, the municipality 
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could amend the Official Plan to require that all Studies submitted with an application are in 
accordance with the applicable Terms of Reference, and if they are not, the associated 
application would not be deemed complete. Under this scenario, the municipality would then 
have the statutory 30 days to evaluate whether the Studies submitted have in fact been 
prepared in accordance with the applicable Terms of Reference. If the Studies have not been 
submitted in accordance with the Terms of Reference, then the application would not be 
complete and would not be processed, subject to the motion rights contained within the 
Planning Act. However, if the studies submitted were in accordance with the Terms of 
Reference, then the clock would commence and the municipality would have the relevant 
statutory time period to review the “merits” of each of the studies.

The most important aspect of this proposed solution is that it would solve the Town’s purported 
problem, without circumventing the checks and balances contained within the Planning Act. 

Consultation

In addition to the above, we also note that with respect to section of the Staff Report that 
suggests that there has been consultation to allow input of the development industry through the 
Oakville Developer Liaison Committee on December 6, 2018. We have canvassed some of 
those who were in attendance who advise that there was no such consultation where input 
could be provided, but rather staff presenting a two staged pre-consultation concept as
something that they were considering, but that had no details upon which there could be any
meaningful input provided.

While a single solution has been proposed above, undoubtedly there are other solutions that 
could be considered, other than the proposed two stage pre-consultation process. As such, it is 
our request that a meaningful consultation take place with the development industry, either 
through the Oakville Developer Liaison Committee, or through the BILD Halton Chapter where 
the municipality and the members of the development community who would be impacted by 
such a two stage pre-consultation, could work together to find solutions.
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We look forward to working with staff to find meaningful solutions. 

Yours truly,

WeirFoulds LLP

Denise Baker

DB/mw
  
cc Client
     Daniel Steinberg, Davies Howe
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